
 

 

 
 
 

Graduate Board 
Thursday, April 23, 2020 

By Zoom: https://maine.zoom.us/j/98686025672 
By Phone: +1 312 626 6799, Meeting ID: 986 8602 5672 

3:15 pm 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

1. Review/approval of February 27, 2020 Graduate Board minutes 
 

2. Review/approval of the March 3 and March 31 Graduate Curriculum Committee 
reports 

 
3. Check in – how are things in your program? 

 
4. Updates: 

 
 Commencement 
 Define Tomorrow initiative 

 
5. COVID-19 and impact on graduate applications, admissions, and enrollment 

 
 Planning for summer and fall terms 
 Finding additional capacity in graduate programs 

 
6. Review of program/curricular changes: 

 
 Proposed MBA concentrations in Food Technology Industry 

Management and in Human Nutrition Industry Management (attached) 
 Proposed Graduate Certificate in Try on Leadership (attached) 
 Substantive change proposal for Master of Music in Music Education 

(attached) 
 Proposed Graduate Certificate for Computing for Educators (attached) 

 
7. Items arising 

https://maine.zoom.us/j/98686025672
tel:+1%20312%20626%206799


Graduate Board 
Room 57, Stodder Hall 

Thursday, February 27, 2020 
3:00 pm – refreshments 

3:15 pm - meeting 
Minutes 

Attending:  P. Agrrawal, J.Ballinger, J. Bonnet, T. Bowden, S. Butler, S. Delcourt, D. Dryer, K. Evans, J. Fastook, 
W. Gramlich, N. Hall, Z.Jin, A. Karapurkar, H. Onsrud, A. Reeve, L. Rickard, C. Sponsarki, J. Stoll, Y. Zhu.

Guests:  Mandy Barington and Ryan Weatherbee – Office of Institutional Research 

Meeting called to order: 3:18PM 

1. Review/approval of the January 30, 2020 Graduate Board minutes
1 Revision – add Kristin Vekasi to attendance from 1/30/2020
Andy Reeve abstained from vote
Otherwise approved as noted.

2. Review/approval of the February 4, 2020 Curriculum Committee report
New Courses: 
 EHD 545 – Education Theory
 MEE541- Manufacturing and Testing of Composites

Course Modifications: 
 NUR505- Nursing Research
 PHY501- Mechanics
 PHY502 – Electromagnetism 1
 PHY512 – Statistical Mechanics

Unanimous approval of Curriculum Committee report. 

3. Announcements/updates:

 Prioritization of doctoral students in assistantship awards – goal is to have a ratio of 75% doctoral students to 25%
master’s students on Graduate School-held assistantships.  This is consistent with the University’s goal to increase
the overall number of doctoral students to better support university research and to attain Carnegie Research I
status

  Will Gramlich suggested that our stipends need to be more in line with other R1 institutions. 
       Scott Delcourt agreed and mentioned that Claire Strickland continues to allocate more funds to stipends even
in tough budget times.   
       Yifeng asked about whether shared TA’s should be doctoral students, and Scott mentioned that ensuring the 
75/25 ratio would be a bit harder because students had to be qualified to teach in another unit, and programs such 
as mathematics do not have a doctoral degree 

 Northeastern collaboration/Roux Institute – Roux announcement came out just before Grad Board last
month.  A delegation from the University went to visit Northeastern to tour the research facility in



 

 

Burlington, MA.  Scott Delcourt attended the meeting and toured the campuses.  Northeastern also visited 
UMaine a week later to discuss collaboration ideas.  Artificial intelligence, Bioinformatics, 
Biotechnology, and Project Management. 
Northeastern is looking for a place to rent in Portland.   They have students already in the pipeline that 
plan to pursue their graduate degrees at the Roux Institute.  There is work on an accelerated program 
between UMaine and NU that may result in a 4+1 or a 3+2 in bioinformatics or computer science.   Jeff 
St.John is leading this project for UMaine.    
Yifeng asked about Computer Science – comparing UMaine to Northeastern’s Seattle Campus.  It seems 
that their prerequisites are low in requirements.   
Scott Delcourt mentioned that the focus of NU’s program might be more focused on workforce needs and 
less on research. They will be very strong in experiential learning.   
Currently, they overlap with UMaine in a minor way.  The President wants to keep discussions open with 
Northeastern on possible collaborations. 

 
 2020 3MT Competition – S. Delcourt reported that 22 Grad Students had signed up – and very excited for 

the competition this year.  Meeting once a week and providing coaching for participants – final 
competition will be the week after March break.  First place winner will present at NAGS in Quebec in 
April, and others will present at the Student Symposium.   

 
 Oral Exam Notice – we have seen very few notices come to the Graduate School and wish to receive 

these notices to place defenses on the Graduate School calendar.  Providing a reminder (see GB packet for 
checklists for May and August) – Scott Delcourt went over the checklists and reminded Grad Board that 
forms are also available on the website.   

 
 Symposium Judges are needed – April 17, 2020 – sign up here in google docs:  

https://forms.gle/zCJLRLiycdCNf4e97 
There are 9 categories to choose from for judging.  UMSS has 32 signed up, and needs approximately 
300 judges.  Volunteers may pick the time and the category they wish to judge.  Faculty and Grad 
Students are eligible to be judges. 
 

 Friday May 8, 2020 – Graduate School Commencement (all Master’s, CAS, EdS, EdD, and PhD degree 
recipients) 4-6pm 

Deadline for students to register to attend is April 24, 2020.   
Important information and deadlines can be found:  https://umaine.edu/graduate/grad-commencement/ 

                                    Faculty Attendance and Regalia order information:  http://umaine.edu/commencement 
                                    Volunteers are needed as well:  https://umaine.edu/graduate/grad-commencement/volunteers/ 

Tickets will not be needed for the event and guests will not be limited.   
Ceremony may run longer than usual due to the inclusion of the doctoral students. 
 

 Upcoming Events:  Professional Development Series - Graduate School Sponsored and many from our 
partners across campus. 

3/3- Thesis Formatting Workshop @ 12 Noon 57 Stodder Hall 
3/5- Mug Club- Publish or Perish @ 4pm in Library 
3/11- Mug Club- Diversity & Inclusion @ 4pm in Career Center, Union 
3/26- NSF Grant Introduction @ 12 Noon 57 Stodder (no flyer yet) 
3/31- Mind Spa Event @ 12 Noon in Union 
 

4. Proposed MBA Concentration (Global Policy)  - a collaboration with SPIA for an MBA with a focus in global policy 
issues.  J. Ballinger stated that this will only available in Orono to start and gradually will move online as well.  – 
Nancy Hall moved to approve. 
Unanimous vote to move forward with the MBA Concentration in Global Policy.   
 

5. Progress on Graduate Program Learning Outcomes 

https://forms.gle/zCJLRLiycdCNf4e97
https://umaine.edu/graduate/grad-commencement/
http://umaine.edu/commencement
https://umaine.edu/graduate/grad-commencement/volunteers/


 

 

 
Mandy Barrington and Ryan Weatherbee from the Office of Institutional Research and Assessment 
(OIRA) reported on the work that the Graduate Board Executive Committee and OIRA have down on 
developing graduate level program learning outcomes.  
  
 
One goal was to look for common themes that might apply across all graduate disciplines. 
 
Mandy discussed the brainstorming session with Executive Committee – 4 areas emerged. 
Starting at the highest level with the Graduate School’s mission statement, we brainstormed the following 
overarching characteristics or attributes of graduate education: 
 

1. Demonstrate responsible and ethical practice 
2. Communicate disciplinary expertise effectively and accurately 
3. Understand and interpret and shape the knowledge base 
4. Commit to teaching environment that supports learning through teaching, collaborative 

inquiry or demonstration.   
 

Four main value groups emerged from the attributes, each with related components:  

1. Understand and shape the knowledge base (Research/Creative Achievement) 
2. Focus on learning environment (Teaching and Learning) 
3. Develop engaged community members (Engagement/Service/Experiential Learning) 
4. Ethical practice (Professionalism/Responsible Conduct of Research/Practice) 

Relationship of learning outcomes to the Strategic Vision and Values (SVV) process.  What is important to us as an 
organization?  How we conduct ourselves? Under each of these four main themes can you see outcomes that relate to your 
disciplines?   

S. Delcourt asked if anyone saw anything missing that we should also be considering.  For example, how is experiential 
learning represented in different graduate programs? Provost’s office is trying to collect and categorize all the versions of 
experiential learning that take place.  What does this mean for each particular program?   (research, clinical experiences, 
teaching practica, others?) 

Andy Knightly asked if anything related to teaching and learning.   Mandy discussed the communication bullet point as 
encompassing this via “communicate disciplinary expertise effectively and actively”.  

S. Delcourt stated that he would ask Monique LaRocque review to see if there are different things we should be 
incorporating that would encompass online learning.   

S. Butler stated that Social Work is both online and on-campus and that they strive to make the programs as much the 
same as possible.  

Carly Sponarski – stated that the engaged community can be before, during, and after the learning experience.   

Keith Evans asked what community we were referring to. 

Pank replied both the programs with the students, and the students with the programs…so that we are not operating in 
silos.   

Monique suggested a revision in the values to “engaged community of learners” 

The next step includes unpacking the values and related bullets and developing program learning outcomes statements 
with Ryan and Mandy’s help.   



 

 

Sandy Butler asked if they could use the learning outcomes that they have already developed for accreditation.  

Nancy Hall asked a similar question.  They currently have learning outcomes that are more student centered. 

Many accredited graduate programs have already developed appropriate program learning outcomes. 

Mandy ended with saying that this is the step that we are engaged in to describe the work we are doing at UMaine in 
graduate education – that will lead us to the appropriate program learning outcomes. 

6.   Strategic Vision and Values (SVV) – SVV document is included in the Grad Board Packet.   

The Broad Goals in the SVV document:  

Goal 1:  We will support and grow Maine’s economy through new discoveries and by building a workforce whose 
members are engaged in their communities and prepared for lifelong success. 

Goal 2: We will continue to provide accessible and affordable education, research, and service through processes 
that ensure effectiveness, efficiency and quality.   

Goal 3: The University will be a rewarding place to live, learn and work by sustaining an environment that is 
diverse and inclusive, and fosters the personal development of all its stakeholders. 

S. Delcourt noted that subgoals under goal 1 include the following, all of which relate to graduate education: 

1.1.6   We will expand production of students with graduate-level credentials to meet workforce needs in Maine and beyond. 

1.2.3   We will produce graduates prepared to contribute to the knowledge, innovation and creative economy. 

1.2.4   We will grow and diversify the doctoral education and research enterprise at UMaine, in partnership with stakeholders 
and collaborators, including other UMS campuses. 

Harlan suggested that some of this work may be parallel with his departments work on collaborating with other 
universities within the system and incentivizing to grow partnerships.   

The Graduate School will identify measurable goals like those above that can document progress towards the SVV plan.  
College deans will also be asking units in their colleges to also identify SVV goals.as we move forward. 

 

Meeting Adjourned:  4:35PM 

 



CURRICULUM COMMITTEE REPORT 

The Curriculum Committee met on March 3, 2020 and recommends the following courses 

to the Graduate Board for approval at its April 23rd meeting. 

Ne111 Courses: 

CHY 559 Problem Solving in Organic Chemistry 

MAT 523 Functions of a Real Variable I 

MAT 524 Functions of a Real Variable II 

SFR 539 Biology of Woody Plants 

 

Modifications: 

ENG 507 Graduate Fiction Workshop 

ENG 515 Approaches to Reports, Proposals, and Grants in Academic and Workplace Settings 

ENG 516 Perspective on Technical Editing and Information Design 

ENG 518 Topics in Professional and Technical Writing 

ENG 529 Studies in Literature 

ENG 536 Studies in Canadian Literature 

ENG 541 American Literature from Colonial through Romantic 

ENG 542 Studies in Multicultural American Literature 



Page 2 March 3 Curriculum Committee Continued 

ENG 541 American Literature from Colonial through Romantic 

ENG 542 Studies in Multicultural American Literature 

ENG 545 American Realism and Naturalism 

ENG 546 Modern American Literature 

ENG 549 Studies in Gender and Literature 

ENG 551 Medieval English Literature 

ENG 553 Shakespeare and His Contemporaries 

ENG 554 Renaissance and 17th-Century Literature 

ENG 555 Literature of the Enlightenment 

ENG 556 English Romanticism 

ENG 558 Modern British Literature 

ENG 579 The Theory of Composition 

ENG 596 Graduate Internship in Professional Writing 

ENG 649 Seminar in Modernist and Postmodernist American Poetry 

ENG 693 Teaching College Composition 

SEO 546 Intervention for Writing Difficulties 

SEO 587 Collaborations and Transitions for Special Educators 

SEO 605 Seminar in Special Education 

SEO 620 Critical and Creative Thinking and Panel Review 



































































































































































































































































































































 
 

Memo 

To:   Scott Delcourt, AVP for Graduate Studies 

From:  Michael Weber, Dean of the Graduate School of Business 

Date:  March 30, 2020 

Subject: MBA Concentrations – Food Technology Industry Management and Human Nutrition 
Industry Management 

The attached proposal provides details for MBA Concentrations in Food Technology Industry 
Management and Human Nutrition Industry Management. The specific elements of the proposal 
include the following:  

 Academic Program Alignment 
 Admissions Requirements 
 Completion Requirements 
 Program Description 
 Program Requirements 
 Course Descriptions 

 
These concentrations are being offered in collaboration with the School of Food and Agriculture.   

The concentrations were approved: 

1. GSB Graduate Curriculum and Learning Committee: 3/13/20 
2. MBS Faculty: 3/27/20 
3. FSN Faculty: 3/27/20  

Attachments include: 

1. Proposal 
2. Signature page 
3. Email approval from the FSN faculty. 

 



 
 

 

Proposals 
Food Technology Industry Management Concentration – MBA 
Human Nutrition Industry Management Concentration – MBA 

Academic Program Alignment 

1. Mission and Goals  

a. The MBA Concentrations in Food Technology and Human Nutrition Industry Management are being 
offered in partnership with the School of Food and Agriculture at the University of Maine. We believe 
this program supports the mission and goals of the University of Maine, the Maine Business School, and 
the School of Food and Agriculture by preparing students for successful careers in business, with a focus 
on Human Nutrition and Food Technology. We believe this program will help improve the quality of life 
for Mainers by contributing to the professional workforce who will be managers and decision makers in 
the food industries. These concentrations are good examples of cross-disciplinary and cross-school 
academic program development.  

2. Program Demand  

a. Demand for well-educated professionals in the food and nutrition sciences currently exceeds supply and 
is expected to grow (Goecker et al., 2015). Additionally, the need for flexible, learner-paced, applied 
graduate education is of particular significance to professionals currently employed in these fields. 
Professionals working in the food industry would benefit greatly from having the opportunity to 
complete an online graduate program in Business with a concentration in Human Nutrition or Food 
Technology. A survey conducted by the Institute of Food Technologists (IFT), the primary professional 
society for food scientists, indicated that there was significant demand for business trained 
professionals in the food science industries. There are currently 241 Food Science, Technology, and/or 
Nutrition oriented jobs listed in Maine on Indeed.com. The average salary for Food Science Professionals 
in Maine is $76,645 according to Salary.com 

3. Program Resource Needs 

a. A majority of the course sequence is already being developed and delivered by the School of Food and 
Agriculture. 

4. Delivery Modalities  

a. The courses are also being developed and delivered online by The School of Food and Agriculture, as 
part of their UMaine GOLD Graduate Certificates and M.S. degree.  

Description 

The MBA Concentrations in Food Technology and Human Nutrition Industry Management acknowledge the value of 
courses in food sciences and nutrition, as well as in professional development. Professional development courses will 
emphasize ethics, communication, and knowledge, and skills necessary for success as food industry and nutrition 
professionals. These are 12-credit concentrations, including BUA 626 and 9 credit hours of Food Technology or Human 
Nutrition courses. The total credits for the MBA, with a concentration in Food Technology or Human Nutrition, is 33 
credit hours.  



 
 

 

Requirements 

Completion of MBA Foundations and/or Tutorials 

Completion of MBA Core (24 credit hours), including BUA 626 Management of Contemporary Organizations  

Completion of 9 credit hours of Food Technology or Human Nutrition courses.  

• Food Technology (choose 3): 
o FSN 502 Food Preservation 
o FSN  538 Fermented Foods & Probiotics 
o FSN 517 Food Safety and Quality Control 
o FSN 555 Organic & Natural Foods  

or 

• Human Nutrition (choose 3):  
o FSN 501 Advanced Human Nutrition 
o FSN 506 Nutrition Assessment 
o FSN 530 Integrative and Functional Nutrition 
o FSN 542 Sustainability, Nutrition, and Health  
o FSN 508 Nutrition & Aging 

Optional Graduate Certification  

• For those students interested in obtaining the Graduate Certificate in Food Technology or the Graduate 
Certificate in Human Nutrition from The School of Food and Agriculture, in addition to the MBA Concentration, 
please consider the following steps: 

o Either Graduate Certificate will require 12 credit hours of approved courses, which is just one additional 
course beyond the requirements of the concentration. 

o Review additional information and apply for the Graduate Certificate at:  
§ https://umaine.edu/foodandagriculture/graduate-programs/  

 

Food Technology Course Descriptions 

FSN 502 Food Preservation.  

Chemicals and processes (freezing, dehydration, canning, irradiation, extrusion) used to extend food quality and safety. 
3 credits. 

FSN 517 Food Safety and Quality Control.   

Factors that affect food safety and an overview of best practices for ensuring the safety and quality of food products in 
food systems. A farm to fork approach, including examples at the harvest, distribution, processing, food service, and 
consumer level. 3 credits. 

FSN  538 Fermented Food and Probiotics.  

Application of the principles of microbiology to the understanding of the fermentation of various categories of foods and 
beneficial bacteria added to these foods. 3 credits. 



 
 

 

FSN 555 Organic and Natural Foods.  

Introduces organic and natural foods from multiple perspectives. Students will gain an understanding of food production 
and processing, legal issues, ingredient functionality, and controversies. 3 credits.  

Human Nutrition Course Descriptions 

FSN 501 Advanced Human Nutrition. 

Basic nutrition science with emphasis on energy, protein, vitamin, mineral and endocrine function and metabolism. 
Introduction to the role of genetics in nutrient metabolism. 3 credits. 

FSN 506 Nutrition Assessment.  

Covers methods of evaluating the nutritional status of individuals or groups of people by dietary assessment and 
nutrition-related health indicators. 3 credits. 

FSN 508 Nutrition and Aging.  

Roles of nutrients, foods and supplements in maintaining health during aging. 3 credits 

FSN 530 Integrative and Functional Nutrition. 

Review of alternative practices such as traditional Chinese medicine, Ayurvedics, homeopathy, naturopathy, herbal 
medicine, and dietary supplements and how these practices can be integrated with conventional dietetic practice. 
Special needs of different life stages and disease conditions are addressed. 3 credits 

FSN  542 Sustainability, Nutrition, and Health.  

Students will study the "Farm to Healthy Body" model, considering sustainable practices when growing, processing, 
transporting, preparing, and choosing food, and how these practices affect the tripod of sustainability, i.e. environment, 
society (health) and economy. 3 Credits.  











Revised: November 2010 
Office of Academic and Student Affairs 

Substantive Change to an Existing Degree Program: (Program Name) 
(University of Maine) 

1 

 

 

 

UNIVERSITY OF MAINE SYSTEM 
              SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE TO AN EXISTING DEGREE PROGRAM 
 

Graduate    X 
University of Maine 

(Institution Name) 
 

1. Title 
Degree:   
Master of Music in Music 
Education 
Area: Music Education 
CIP Code: 13.1312 

 

2. Persons Responsible for Planning  
 Name: Laura Artesani 

Department: Division of Music 
Phone number: 581-1745 
Address: Class of 1944 Hall 

  

 Name: Webb Parker 
Department: Division of Music 
Phone number: 581-4703 
Address: Class of 1944 Hall 

 
 

 
 

 
2. General Objective of Proposal:  We are planning to shift our M.M. in Music 

Education degree to an online program.  
 

3. Documented Evidence of Need:  It is not economically feasible for most music 
educators to leave their teaching positions to attend graduate school full time on 
campus. An online master’s degree in Music Education will provide music 
educators in Maine and beyond with the ability to complete courses without 
traveling a long distance or leaving their teaching positions. The state of Maine 
professional teaching licensure requires that teachers complete six graduate credits 
every five years, so there is a need for viable graduate courses in music education in 
our state. We plan to include an emphasis on teaching music in rural schools, which 
is relevant to many music educators in Maine and elsewhere, and does not appear to 
be addressed in any other online M.M. in Music Education degree programs in the 
U.S. 

 
 

5.  A. Which campuses, agencies, organizations, institutions or individuals have 
you involved in the program? 
Name  Address  Individual Contact  Title 

 

Dr. Monique LaRocque   University of Maine Division of Lifelong Learning, 100 
Chadbourne Hall, Associate Provost, DLL 
 
Dagmar Moravec, Director of Online Student Student Services and UMaine 
GOLD Program 



Revised: November 2010 
Office of Academic and Student Affairs 

Substantive Change to an Existing Degree Program: (Program Name) 
(University of Maine) 

2 

 

 

B. Which campuses, agencies, organizations, institutions or individuals do 
you plan to involve in the program? 
Name  Address  Individual Contact  Title 

 

Dr. Shihfen Tu, University of Maine College of Education and Human 
Development, Shibles Hall, Director, School of Learning and Teaching 

 

C. How? 
 

It is our hope that some online graduate education courses currently offered 
in the COEHD will count as electives in our online M.M in Music Education 
degree program. 

     
6.  What type and/or extent of support is presently available? 

 
A. Personnel  We currently have two faculty members in the Division of Music 
who hold the Ph.D. in Music Education: Dr. Philip Edelman and Dr. Webb 
Parker.  Phil and Webb both have many years of teaching experience in public 
schools.  Webb was the coordinator of a similar online program at the University 
of Southern Mississippi before coming to the University of Maine.  There are 
other qualified music educators in our state who could potentially teach courses in 
this online degree program on a part-time basis. 

 

B. Facilities   We will continue to work with the Division of Lifelong Learning 
and UMaine GOLD as we implement this program.   
 
C. Equipment 

 
D. Funding Sources  

E. Library Resources  

F. Other 

G. What additional new costs are required in any or all of the above 
categories?  It is possible that the implementation of this online degree 
program will require a change in teaching loads for Dr. Parker and Dr. 
Edelman, which may necessitate covering courses in their current loads with 
adjunct faculty members. 

 

 

7.  Briefly describe preliminary plans for regular program evaluations, 
formative and summative. 

 
 Summative: This degree program would continue to be evaluated and accredited 

through the National Association of Schools of Music (NASM). 
  
 Formative: Student course evaluations would continue to be used as feedback.  

 

8.  Time Frame: 
Estimated Planning Time: We initially met with Monique LaRocque and 
Dagmar Moravec in Spring 2019; additional meetings are scheduled, and planning 
is ongoing.  



Revised: November 2010 
Office of Academic and Student Affairs 

Substantive Change to an Existing Degree Program: (Program Name) 
(University of Maine) 

3 

 

 

Estimated Implementation Time:  We plan to launch the online degree program 
in January 2021. 
Estimate of Program Lifetime: With content and technological updates to stay 
current in the field, this degree program will be viable for many years to come. 

 

 

9.  COMPLETE FOR GRADUATE PROGRAM ONLY: On what other campus, if any, 
will this program be available?  What plans are there to insure 
transferability from other campuses into this program or to deliver this 
program to other campuses?   

 
 Students who have earned an undergraduate degree in music education from 

the University of Southern Maine would be eligible for this degree program.   

 
 

10.  Other Pertinent Data and/or Information:  
Informal responses from music educators in our state about this proposal have 
been very positive. 

     



Revised: November 2010 
Office of Academic and Student Affairs 

Substantive Change to an Existing Degree Program: (Program Name) 
(University of Maine) 

4 

 

 

 

11.  Submitted By: 
 

 
 
    Laura Artesani   March 3, 2020  

(Signatures of Person(s) Responsible for Program Plan) 
(Date) 

 

 
 

Approved By: 
 

 
      4-16-20 
 

 

(College Dean)  
(Date) 
 
 
 

 
(Associate Provost for Lifelong Learning) 
(Date) 
 
 
 
 
(VP for Research and Dean of the Graduate School) 
(Date) 

 

 

 
 
 
(Provost)  
(Date) 

 
 
 
 
 

 

(President) 
(Date) 

4/16/20 
























